

# United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys  
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

VOL. 18

APRIL 17, 1970

NO. 8

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
POINTS TO REMEMBER	
Use of Printing Contracts	253
Suggestion Award	253
COMMENDATIONS	254
ANTITRUST DIVISION	
SHERMAN & CLAYTON ACTS	
Drug Companies Charged With Violation of Secs. 1 and 2 of Sherman Act and 4A of Clayton Act	<u>U.S. v. Bristol-Myers</u> (D. C. D. C.) 255
CIVIL DIVISION	
INDEMNITY	
Govt. Is Entitled to Indemnity "On the Basis of Comparative Negligence" Under Standard Form Contractual Indemnity Provision Which Makes Con- tractor "Responsible for all Damages to Persons or Property That Occur as a Result of His Fault or Negligence"	<u>U.S. v. Seckinger</u> (Sup. Ct.) 257
FED. TORT CLAIMS ACT	
Where Soldier Travelling on Permanent Change of Station Has Substantially Deviated from Direct Route Between Duty Stations, He Is Not Acting Within Scope of His Employ- ment When Driving His Auto- mobile	<u>McSwain v. U.S.</u> (C.A. 3) 258
GOVT. EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE	
Where Substantial Charges Support Employee Dismissal, Allega- tion That Dismissal was Mali- ciously Motivated May Be Dis- regarded; Ct. Sustains Procedure	

## CIVIL DIVISION (CONTD.)

## GOVT. EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE (CONTD.)

Whereby Civil Service Commissioners, Rather Than Hearing Examiner, Hear Charges That Discharge Was Politically Motivated; Ct. Rejects Contention That Constitution Requires Civil Service Commission to Have Subpoena Power

DeLong v. Hampton (C.A. 3) 259

TRADING WITH THE ENEMY ACT -  
CUBAN ASSETS CONTROL REGULATIONS

Freezing of Assets of Cuban Corp., and Refusal to Allow Non-Cuban Shareholders to Withdraw Proportionate Share of Frozen Assets, Do Not Constitute an Unconstitutional Deprivation of Property

Nielsen v. Secy. of Treasury (C.A. D.C.) 261

## CRIMINAL DIVISION

## FED. FOOD, DRUG &amp; COSMETIC ACT

Agency Withdrawal of Fixed Combination Antibiotic Drugs from Market Without Administrative Hearing Upheld

The Upjohn Co. v. Finch (C.A. 6) 262

## NARCOTICS &amp; DANGEROUS DRUGS

Sec. 4755(b) of Title 26 Held Not to Violate Fifth Amendment. Harmless Error Doctrine of Harrington v. Calif. Applied.

U.S. v. Young (C.A. 8) 263

## IMMIGRATION &amp; NATURALIZATION SERVICE

## DEPORTATION

Deportation Order Against Notorious Mafia Figure Affirmed

Gambino v. Immigration & Naturalization Service (C.A. 2) 265

Pendency of Collateral Administrative Proceeding Does Not Bar Commencement of Deportation Proceeding

Manantan v. INS (C.A. 7) 266

	<u>Page</u>
<b>NATURALIZATION</b>	
Unwillingness to Vote, Engage in Politics, or Serve on Jury Be- cause of Religious Beliefs Do Not Bar Petitioner From Naturalization	<u>In re Antonia Palmieri</u> <u>Pisciattano</u> (D. Conn.) 267
<b>FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE</b>	
RULE 6: The Grand Jury	<u>U.S. v. Nat. Marketing, Inc.</u> (D. Minn.) 269
RULE 8: Joinder of Offenses and of Defendants	<u>U.S. v. Elliott</u> (C.A. 9) 271
RULE 12: Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections	
(b) The Motion Raising	
(1) Defenses and Objections Which May Be Raised	<u>U.S. v. Knox</u> (Sup. Ct.) 273
RULE 13: Trial Together of Indict- ments or Information	<u>U.S. v. Elliott</u> (C.A. 9) 275
RULE 16: Discovery and Inspection	
(a) Defendant's Statements; Re- ports of Examinations and Tests; Defendant's Grand Jury Testimony	<u>U.S. v. Nat. Marketing,</u> <u>Inc.</u> (D. Minn.) 277
(b) Other Books, Papers, Docu- ments, Tangible Objects or Places	<u>U.S. v. Nat. Marketing,</u> <u>Inc.</u> (D. Minn.) 279
RULE 18: Place of Prosecution and Trial	<u>Houston v. U.S.</u> (C.A. 5) 281
RULE 20: Transfer from the District for Plea and Sentence	<u>Chambers v. Moseley</u> (D. Kan.) 283
RULE 21: Transfer from the District for Trial	<u>Houston v. U.S.</u> (C.A. 5) 285

		<u>Page</u>
RULE 30: Instructions	<u>Walker v. U.S.</u> (C.A. D.C.)	287
	<u>U.S. v. Elliott</u> (C.A. 9)	289
RULE 31: Verdict		
(c) Conviction of Less Offense	<u>Walker v. U.S.</u> (C.A. D.C.)	291
RULE 35: Correction or Reduction of Sentence	<u>U.S. v. Grene</u> (S.D. Fla.)	293
RULE 52: Harmless Error and Plain Error	<u>U.S. v. Elliott</u> (C.A. 9)	295
LEGISLATIVE NOTES		

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Use of Printing Contracts

All United States Attorneys, with existing printing contracts in their districts, are reminded that the use of these contracts are mandatory unless approval is received from the Chief, General Services Section, Department of Justice, Washington, D.C., for outside printing.

Suggestion Award:

We are pleased to announce that Mrs. Angelamaria J. Pagliaroli, an employee of the United States Attorney's office, Newark, New Jersey, has been awarded \$285 for a suggestion she made. Mrs. Pagliaroli suggested and designed a Narcotics Addiction Rehabilitation Act Unit which would handle all commitment cases for her district. The proposal saves attorney manhours by freeing the Assistant U.S. Attorneys from much of the nonprofessional procedural work in the handling of narcotic cases.

The unit is operating successfully, and those of you with similar problems are encouraged to obtain copies of the suggestion from your Regional Assistant.

\*

\*

\*

NOTE:

In the April 3, 1970 issue of the Bulletin, Points to Remember section, under Acceptance of Settlements in Lands Cases, the CFR citation should be 28, not 24 as printed.

COMMENDATIONS

Assistant U.S. Attorney Alan Morrison (S.D. N.Y.) was commended by Johnnie Walters, Assistant Attorney General, Tax Division, Department of Justice, for his preparation and handling of U.S. Steel.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Joel Friedman (S.D. Ind.) was commended by Chief Postal Inspector, Post Office Department, for his preparation and prosecution re Jack Aldridge & Floyd Foust.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Bernard Dempsey, Jr. (M.D. Fla.) was commended by Director J. Edgar Hoover, FBI, for his preparation for and during the trial and conviction of Eli S. Jenkins.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Joseph Rosensweig (E.D. N.Y.) was commended by William D. Ruckelshaus, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, Department of Justice, for his high degree of professional excellence, his diligent research and effective argument re Estate of Stanislas C. Howard.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Loren Keenan (E.D. Mich.) was commended by Commissioner Randolph W. Thrower, Internal Revenue Service, for his preparation and prosecution of Mary McKee, who, for many years prepared numerous false income tax returns for clients.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Stephen Shawe (D. Md.) was commended by Postal Inspector in Charge, Post Office Department, Washington, D.C., re trials of U.S. v. Mark Ben Poland, et al., and stated:

Mr. Shawe's active participation in the investigation enabled him to retain knowledge of hundreds of facts and documents involving each defendant, and enabled him to bring this evidence to the Court's attention during the trials. Mr. Shawe willingly worked long and odd hours, and weekends, in preparation for the trials. His handling of the trials was of the highest order and drew very favorable comment from Judge Thomsen in open Court.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Edward Funston (D. Kansas) was commended by District Director, Internal Revenue Service, Wichita, Kansas, for his preparation and presentation re Glen & Pauline Hubbard.

\*

\*

\*

ANTITRUST DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Richard W. McLaren

DISTRICT COURTSHERMAN AND CLAYTON ACTSDRUG COMPANIES CHARGED WITH VIOLATION OF SECTIONS 1  
AND 2 OF SHERMAN ACT AND 4A OF CLAYTON ACT.United States v. Bristol-Myers Co., et al. (Dist. of Col., No. 822-70)

On March 19, 1970, the Department filed a civil antitrust suit against Bristol-Myers Company, Beecham Group Limited of England and its United States subsidiary Beecham, Inc. of Clifton, New Jersey, manufacturers of ampicillin and other semisynthetic penicillins, broadspectrum antibiotics. The complaint was filed in the District of Columbia under the patent code long arm provision, 35 U.S.C. 203.

Ampicillin is a semisynthetic penicillin which possesses distinctive biological and chemical properties which, in certain circumstances, make it a more effective and safe antibacterial agent than natural penicillins or other antibiotics such as tetracycline.

The complaint alleges that the defendants combined and conspired in unreasonable restraint of trade in ampicillin and other semisynthetic penicillins and have monopolized trade and commerce in ampicillin by fraudulently procuring and enforcing Beecham's patent covering ampicillin and restraining and preventing the sale of the drugs in bulk form or under other than specified trade names.

The bulk form of a drug is the form in which it is manufactured prior to being cut with inert ingredients such as corn starch and formulated into capsules, tablets, or other dosage forms.

The suit specifies that defendants, in procuring Beecham's ampicillin patent, committed fraudulent and inequitable impositions upon the Patent Office by, among other things, failing to bring certain prior art to the attention of the Patent Examiner despite their knowledge that it was a closer reference to the invention than the prior art being considered, delaying the publication of an article that explained the significance of the reference until after the issuance of the ampicillin patent, and reporting in a deceptive and misleading manner the results of experiments conducted at the request of the Patent Examiner.

The Department charges that Beecham and Bristol entered into a series of agreements with one another and with other drug companies limiting sales in the United States to dosage form products to be sold under specified trademarks. Bristol, which was given exclusive licensing rights in this country, licensed American Home Products Corporation, Parke, Davis & Company, and E.R. Squibb & Sons.

In 1968 Bristol and its U.S. licensees sold approximately \$85 million worth of ampicillin. It is sold by Bristol as "Polycillin"; by the Ayerst Division of American Home (as agent for Beecham) as "Penbrittin"; by the Wyeth Division of American Home as "Omnipen"; by Parke, Davis as "Amcil" and by Squibb as "Principen".

The complaint seeks cancellation of Beecham's ampicillin patent and a patent owned by Bristol covering a variant of ampicillin known as ampicillin trihydrate, which was described in an older patent prior to Bristol's claimed invention, according to the complaint.

The complaint additionally seeks money damages of an unspecified amount resulting from its injuries and damages from its paying substantially higher prices because of the alleged violations. It claims further damages resulting from purchases under domestic and foreign support programs which the Government subsidizes.

It should be further noted that Beecham and Bristol are presently attempting to enforce their ampicillin patents by maintaining a patent infringement suit against Zenith Laboratories, Inc. of Northvale, New Jersey, which imports ampicillin from Italy and distributes it generically at prices lower than those charged by defendants or their licensees. Beecham is also attempting to exclude importation of the lower-priced ampicillin, by instituting and maintaining proceedings before the Tariff Commission based on its patent.

Staff: Richard H. Stern, James H. Wallace, Jr.  
and William B. Bohling (Antitrust Division)

\*

\*

\*

CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General William D. Ruckelshaus

SUPREME COURTINDEMNITY

GOVT. IS ENTITLED TO INDEMNITY "ON THE BASIS OF COMPARATIVE NEGLIGENCE" UNDER STANDARD FORM CONTRACTUAL INDEMNITY PROVISION WHICH MAKES CONTRACTOR "RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY THAT OCCUR AS A RESULT OF HIS FAULT OR NEGLIGENCE".

United States v. M.O. Seckinger, Jr., etc. (Sup. Ct., No. 395; March 9, 1970; D.J. 157-67-184, 157-67-336)

This case arises out of a 1956 accident which injured one of respondent Seckinger's employees, one Branham, while he was working at the Paris Island Marine Depot in South Carolina under a contract between Seckinger and the Government. Branham received Workman's Compensation payments from the South Carolina authorities, and then sued the United States in the District Court for the Eastern District of South Carolina under the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 2671, et seq. The United States sought to implead Seckinger as a third party defendant at that time, alleging that Branham's injuries were caused by Seckinger's negligence and seeking indemnification for any Government liability under the standard contract clause providing that the contractor (Seckinger)

shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of his fault or negligence in connection with the prosecution of the work. /Standard Form Contract 23A, Art. 12; see 41 C.F.R. (1969 rev.) 1-16.901-23A-Art. 12/.

On Seckinger's motion, however, the trial judge dismissed the third-party complaint without prejudice. Thereafter, the district court found the Government to have been negligent and awarded Branham judgment for \$45,000 and costs, which the Government has paid.

The Government then instituted the present action against Seckinger in the District Court for the Southern District of Georgia. The complaint was based upon the contractual indemnity provision quoted above, alleging facts constituting causal negligence on Seckinger's part. Seckinger moved to dismiss the complaint and the district court did so. On appeal, the Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit affirmed the district court's decision.

The Court reasoned that since the Government had been found negligent in the prior action, any indemnification it might obtain would necessarily be indemnification for its own negligence. Upon concluding that the question whether such indemnification would be proper under a Government contract was a matter of Federal rather than state common law, the Court adopted as the Federal rule the "majority rule" among the states--that indemnification for an indemnitee's own negligence will be allowed only if there is an "unequivocal expression of intent" to that effect in the contract. Finding no such statement in the contract here, the Court concluded that the Government is not entitled to any indemnification from Seckinger.

The Supreme Court granted certiorari and reversed. Preliminarily, the Court held that Federal law controls the interpretation of the contract. It then held that under the plain language of the clause the Government was entitled to indemnity "on the basis of comparative negligence". Under this interpretation of the clause, the contractor "will be required to indemnify the United States to the full extent that its negligence, if any, contributed to the injuries to the employee". The Court stated that "this interpretation is consistent with the plain language of the clause, for Seckinger will be required to indemnify the United States to the full extent that its negligence, if any, contributed to the injuries to the employee. Secondly, the principle that indemnification for the indemnitee's own negligence must be clearly and unequivocally indicated as the intention of the parties is preserved intact. In no event will Seckinger be required to indemnify the United States to the extent that the injuries were attributable to the negligence, if any, of the United States. In short, Seckinger will be responsible for the damages caused by its negligence; similarly, responsibility will fall upon the United States to the extent that it was negligent."

Staff: Robert V. Zener and Ronald R. Glancz (Civil Division)

## COURTS OF APPEALS

### FEDERAL TORT CLAIMS ACT

WHERE SOLDIER TRAVELLING ON PERMANENT CHANGE OF STATION HAS SUBSTANTIALLY DEVIATED FROM DIRECT ROUTE BETWEEN DUTY STATIONS, HE IS NOT ACTING WITHIN SCOPE OF HIS EMPLOYMENT WHEN DRIVING HIS AUTOMOBILE.

Dorothea E. McSwain, et al. v. United States (C.A. 3, No. 17,873; D.J. 157-62-501)

A soldier was issued orders permanently transferring him from California to Tennessee. He was allowed travel time plus leave time in

connection with the transfer, and he was authorized to use his own automobile in effecting the transfer. He chose to drive to Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, the home of his wife's family, and to leave her and their infant daughter there while he proceeded on to Memphis, Tennessee. They chose to drive on a route which was 300 miles north of the direct route between duty stations, and which took them to Las Vegas, Nevada, Arizona and through Colorado sightseeing. While in Colorado, the soldier fell asleep while driving, causing the automobile accident which killed his infant daughter. The child's mother, and administratrix instituted this suit against the Government, alleging that the soldier was within the scope of his employment at the time of the accident, and under principles of respondeat superior the Government should be held liable accordingly. The district court held that under Colorado law the soldier was acting within the scope of his employment at the time of the accident and held the Government liable accordingly. We appealed.

The Third Circuit reversed, one judge dissenting. It held that here the soldier was not within the scope of his employment at the time of the accident because he had substantially deviated geographically from the direct route, and that the accident arose out of an external, independent and personal motive. The Court distinguished the case of Courtright v. Pittman, 264 F.Supp. 114 (D. Colo.) on the basis that there the soldier was on the direct route to his new duty station when the accident occurred.

Staff: Patricia Baptiste (Civil Division)

#### GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE

WHERE SUBSTANTIAL CHARGES SUPPORT EMPLOYEE DISMISSAL, ALLEGATION THAT DISMISSAL WAS MALICIOUSLY MOTIVATED MAY BE DISREGARDED; CT. SUSTAINS PROCEDURE WHEREBY CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSIONERS, RATHER THAN HEARING EXAMINER, HEAR CHARGES THAT DISCHARGE WAS POLITICALLY MOTIVATED; CT. REJECTS CONTENTION THAT CONSTITUTION REQUIRES CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION TO HAVE SUBPOENA POWER.

DeLong v. Hampton, et al. (C.A. 3, No. 17785, decided January 20, 1970; D.J. 35-62-29)

DeLong, a civil service employee with the Bureau of Outdoor Recreation, Department of Interior, was discharged on the basis of charges of submitting a false claim for travel expenses, careless accounting for streetcar tokens, falsifying an employment application, submitting altered correspondence, and making scurrilous remarks in writing against his supervisors and co-employees. Appealing his discharge to the Civil Service Commission, he alleged that it was motivated by malice on the

part of his supervisors, and that he was subject to political discrimination. After DeLong had a chance to make a record on all his contentions before a Civil Service Commission hearing examiner, the record was submitted to the Civil Service Commissioners themselves for a decision on the issue of political discrimination. After the Commissioners decided this issue adversely to DeLong, the record was returned to the hearing examiner, who decided the remaining issues adversely to DeLong. After an unsuccessful appeal within the Commission, DeLong brought this action. The district court dismissed the action. It rejected the claim of malicious motivation by stating that, in light of the substantial offenses DeLong had committed, the motivation of his superiors was irrelevant.

The Court of Appeals affirmed. It rejected the contention that malicious motivation invalidated the discharge, stating: "Here, in light of the very substantial offenses committed by plaintiff, the district court concluded--and we are in full agreement--that the Commission was correct in finding that plaintiff's discharge was for the good of the service. Under these circumstances the district court's apparent belief that malice on the part of plaintiff's superiors would be irrelevant does not require reversal."

The procedure utilized by the Commission in deciding the issue of political discrimination posed a problem, since no published regulation authorizes the procedure, although the Commission utilizes the procedure as a matter of standard practice. (5 C.F.R. 752.304(b)(2) authorizes the procedure in cases of suspensions of 30 days or less, but no similar regulation exists for discharges.) However, in this case DeLong's only claim was that he was denied due process because no hearing was held. The response of the Court of Appeals to this contention was that DeLong had ample opportunity to make a record on the subject of political discrimination before the hearing examiner, and "plaintiff does not assert that he was prejudiced by the Commission's taking this issue from its hearing examiners and drawing its own conclusions from the record".

Finally, in reliance on its own decision in Cohen v. Rider, 373 F.2d 530, aff'g 258 F.Supp. 693, the Court of Appeals rejected the contention that the Commission's lack of subpoena power violated due process.

Staff: Robert V. Zener and Julius F. Bishop (Civil Division)

TRADING WITH THE ENEMY ACT -  
CUBAN ASSETS CONTROL REGULATIONS

FREEZING OF ASSETS OF CUBAN CORPORATION, AND REFUSAL TO ALLOW NON-CUBAN SHAREHOLDERS TO WITHDRAW PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF FROZEN ASSETS, DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN UNCONSTITUTIONAL DEPRIVATION OF PROPERTY.

Lucia Schueg Nielsen v. Secretary of the Treasury, et al. (C.A. D.C.; Nos. 21,884-6; February 5, 1970; D.J. 163-4-4)

Appellants are Cuban refugees who own 750 of the 1000 outstanding shares of a Cuban corporation whose assets in the United States were "frozen" pursuant to the Cuban Assets Control Regulations, 31 C.F.R., Part 515. The regulations were promulgated in 1963 under the authority of Section 5(b) of the Trading with the Enemy Act, 50 U.S.C. App. 5(b), which authorizes the President, during the time of war or a national emergency, to "freeze" all property belonging to a "designated country", or its nationals. Since July 8, 1963, Cuba has been such a designated country.

Since the Cuban corporation and its assets in Cuba had been nationalized by the Castro regime, appellants asserted (a) that they, as majority shareholders and as refugees from the Castro regime, ought to be allowed to act on behalf of the corporation in the United States; (b) that as shareholders they had a direct interest in the corporate assets; and (c) that the failure of the Treasury Department to issue a license unfreezing a proportionate share of the frozen corporate assets deprived them of this property without due process of law.

The Court of Appeals, in affirming the dismissal below, held that there was no constitutional inhibition that overrides a statute authorizing the institution, during time of national emergency, of a program that freezes the status within the United States of assets of a national or a foreign country "designated" by the President. The freeze on transfer of Cuban assets was designed not only to promote economic isolation in the present, but also constitutes meaningful planning for the future, by preserving the assets involved for possible use in partial satisfaction of American claims against Cuba. Disregard of the corporate entity and the national character of the Cuban corporation owning the assets was not required either by the Constitution or by the Trading with the Enemy Act.

Staff: Bruno A. Ristau (Civil Division)

\*

\*

\*

CRIMINAL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Will Wilson

COURTS OF APPEALSFEDERAL FOOD, DRUG, AND COSMETIC ACTAGENCY WITHDRAWAL OF FIXED COMBINATION ANTIBIOTIC  
DRUGS FROM MARKET WITHOUT ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING UPHeld.The Upjohn Co. v. Robert H. Finch, et al. (C.A. 6, No. 19, 926;  
February 27, 1970; D.J. 21-38-50)

The Court of Appeals upheld action taken by the Food and Drug Administration forbidding the sale and distribution of Upjohn's fixed combination antibiotic drugs marketed under the trade names Panalba, Albamycin-T, and Albamycin G.U. On September 10, 1969, the Food and Drug Administration issued an order denying an evidentiary hearing to Upjohn and revoking certificates of safety and effectiveness for the drugs. Agency action was based on a study of more than 3,000 marketed drugs done by the National Academy of Sciences/National Research Council under contract with the Department of Health, Education & Welfare. The NAS/NRC panel found that the instant drugs were ineffective for the indications specified in their labeling and produced a high incidence of adverse reactions.

The Court held that (a) Upjohn had failed to meet the standards of substantial evidence required by 21 U.S.C. 355(d); (b) the FDA was not required to grant a full evidentiary hearing to the company before removing the drugs from the market; (c) the FDA had given the company adequate notice and opportunity to submit substantial evidence to support its claims for the drugs; and (d) the Commissioner of Food and Drugs was not disqualified to issue the order in question because of statements he made before congressional committees in May, 1969.

This case is the first appellate court decision under the 1962 amendments to the Food, Drug & Cosmetic Act upholding the Commissioner's authority to withdraw drugs found to be ineffective and upholding the regulations promulgated by the Commissioner under the 1962 amendments.

Staff: Assistant General Counsel William W. Goodrich  
(Department of HEW) and John L. Murphy (Criminal Division)

NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS

SEC. 4755(b) OF TITLE 26 HELD NOT TO VIOLATE FIFTH AMENDMENT. HARMLESS ERROR DOCTRINE OF HARRINGTON v. CALIFORNIA APPLIED.

United States v. Young (C.A. 8, No. 18, 905; March 3, 1970; D.J. 12-39-159)

Appellant was convicted on four counts of marihuana violations (26 U.S.C. 4742a, 4744(a)(1), and 4755(b)). On appeal he claimed that the Fifth Amendment entitled him to immunity to prosecution for these offenses and that the admission of the incriminatory extrajudicial statement of his co-defendant violated Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 123.

The Government conceded and the Court held that under Leary v. United States, 395 U.S. 6, the Section 4744(a)(1) violation (acquiring marihuana without paying the transfer tax) must fall. The two counts charging illegal transfer of marihuana (Section 4742(a)) were upheld on the basis of Buie v. United States, 396 U.S. 87 (Dec. 8, 1969).

Appellant attacked his conviction of conspiracy to violate 26 U.S.C. 4755(b) (transportation of marihuana within the United States) by equating this section to Section 4744(a)(2) which was found constitutionally infirm in Leary. Appellant reasoned that because Section 4755(b) does not apply to those who registered and paid the tax as required by Sections 4751-4753, his conviction was actually a conviction for not complying with those sections. Therefore, as his conviction was for failing to make incriminating disclosures, it was unconstitutional as violative of the Fifth Amendment. The Court rejected this argument pointing out that the registration provisions allow only those involved in legitimate activity in marihuana to register (26 C.F.R. 151.24 (1969)). Because appellant was not a lawful dealer, he was not entitled to register and therefore he could not be incriminated by a disclosure obligation which did not apply to him (United States v. Castro, 413 F.2d 891 (1st Cir. 1969)).

The Court continued that even if a conviction under Section 4755(b) was not a conviction for failing to register and pay the tax and that those involved in illegal marihuana traffic could register, registration under Section 4753 was not necessarily incriminating. This registration statute is not directed at an inherently suspect group as were the registration provisions in Marchetti, 390 U.S. 39; Grosso, 390 U.S. 62; and Haynes, 390 U.S. 85. The Court felt that the insubstantial hazards of incrimination posed by this section did not violate the Fifth Amendment.

The Court also rejected appellant's contention that Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 123, was violated when the court admitted, over appellant's objection, his co-defendant's extra-judicial statement which implicated appellant. The Court held that even if there had been a violation of Bruton it was harmless under Harrington v. California, 395 U.S. 250, because all the facts in the statement were proved by independent evidence and the

evidence of appellant's guilt was overwhelming. While not deciding the case on this point, the Court emphasized that Bruton was decided on the constitutional issue of right to confrontation while in this case there was no issue of confrontation because the co-defendant took the stand and repudiated his statement.

Staff: United States Attorney Robert G. Renner and  
Assistant U.S. Attorney Joseph T. Walbran  
(D. Minnesota)

\*

\*

\*

IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZATION SERVICE

Commissioner Raymond F. Farrell

COURTS OF APPEALSDEPORTATIONDEPORTATION ORDER AGAINST NOTORIOUS MAFIA FIGURE  
AFFIRMED.

Carlo Gambino v. Immigration & Naturalization Service (C.A. 2,  
No. 31781; January 7, 1970; D.J. 39-51-3180)

The above action involved a petition to review an order of deportation on the ground that petitioner entered the United States as a stowaway in 1921, and a denial of petitioner's requests for discretionary relief pursuant to Sections 244(e), 245 and 249 of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. 1254(e), 1255 and 1259.

Petitioner contended that a departure to Canada in 1935, under the pre-examination procedures then in effect, and return to this country supersedes the 1921 arrival as an entry, that Section 241(f) of the Act, 8 U.S.C. 1251(f), bars the deportation of petitioner and that discretionary relief was improperly denied for failure to answer certain questions.

Petitioner conceded that his original entry in the United States as a stowaway in 1921 was illegal and would ordinarily be a ground for deportation under Section 241(a)(1) of the Act, 8 U.S.C. 1251(a)(1). But petitioner claimed that a departure to Canada and return on the same day in 1935 under a pre-examination procedure was a legal entry, or at least an entry superseding the 1921 entry so that the order based on the stowaway entry in 1921 is invalid. The Court, however, held that the 1935 entry had no such effect, noting that the departure was for the limited and temporary purpose of applying for a consular visa, which was refused in his case because of his arrest record. Such an absence and return did not effect a valid entry which would erase the effects of the 1921 illegal entry. Cf. Rosenberg v. Fleuti, 374 U.S. 449 (1963); McLeod v. Peterson, 283 F.2d 180 (C.A. 3, 1960).

Adverting to the issue of discretionary relief, the Court observed that petitioner had been the subject of deportation proceedings since 1957 and that at several points the proceedings were delayed due to petitioner's poor health. To minimize the danger to petitioner's health, the Special Inquiry Officer directed that the questioning be conducted by written interrogatories. Petitioner was sent a list of eleven questions concerning

his criminal record, business activities, acquaintances and associates (many of whom are convicted felons), his visit to Joseph Barbara's home in Appalachin in 1957, and was asked for production of his income tax returns for the last ten years; however, petitioner only partially answered two of the questions and refused to answer any others. After petitioner's repeated refusal to answer questions, the Special Inquiry Officer denied petitioner's requested relief and ordered his deportation to Italy on the basis of his illegal entry in 1921 as a stowaway.

The Court held that the denial of discretionary relief was not an abuse of the Attorney General's discretion. Petitioner's criminal record, activities and associations, as well as his current sources of income were relevant in determining whether petitioner was a person of good moral character and whether the grant of discretionary relief from deportation was justified, and petitioner's repeated failure to supply such information was a good ground for refusing discretionary relief. Kimm v. Rosenberg, 363 U.S. 405 (1960).

Petitioner also contended that his deportation is prohibited by Section 241(f) of the Act, 8 U.S.C. 1251(f), which creates an exception from deportation for aliens "otherwise admissible", and having certain family ties with persons lawfully in this country. After reviewing the legislative history of this provision and judicial authority, the Court concluded that the beneficence of this provision did not extend to aliens who came here as stowaways.

The petition for review was denied and the order of deportation was affirmed.

Staff: Daniel Riesel, Special Assistant U.S. Attorney  
(Robert M. Morgenthau, Former U.S. Attorney  
for the Southern District of New York, of Counsel)

PENDENCY OF COLLATERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING  
DOES NOT BAR COMMENCEMENT OF DEPORTATION PROCEEDING.

Cecilia Manantan, et al. v. INS (C.A. 7, No. 17,499; March 18, 1970;  
D.J. 39-23-520)

At the request of the Government petitions of 25 aliens were considered by the Court in one consolidated proceeding under Section 106 of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. 1105a, for review of final administrative determinations of deportability. Petitioners were all citizens of the Republic of the Philippines who had been admitted to the United States as exchange visitors pursuant to the Mutual Education and Cultural Exchange Act of 1961, 22 U.S.C. Ch. 33. After hearings before

a special inquiry officer, each was found deportable for remaining longer than authorized and was granted voluntary departure with provision for his deportation if he failed to depart within the time specified.

The aliens contended that they were not overstays within the meaning of the deportation statute, Section 241(a)(2) of the Act, 8 U.S.C. 1251(a)(2), because at the time of their deportation hearings they had pending before the Department of Health, Education and Welfare applications for waiver of the two-year foreign residence requirement which exchange visitors must fulfill before they may return to the United States as immigrants.

The Court affirmed the administrative orders. It found no basis in the wording of the Immigration and Nationality Act or in its policy to delay as a matter of right the commencement and completion of the adjudication of an alien's deportability when he makes application for collateral administrative relief. The Court pointed out that after deportability is established and final an alien may still apply to the district director of the Service for an extension of voluntary departure or a stay of deportation pending final determination of collateral matters.

Staff: Paul C. Summitt (Criminal Division)

## DISTRICT COURT

### NATURALIZATION

UNWILLINGNESS TO VOTE, ENGAGE IN POLITICS, OR SERVE ON A JURY BECAUSE OF RELIGIOUS BELIEFS DO NOT BAR PETITIONER FROM NATURALIZATION.

In re Antonia Palmieri Pisciatano (D. Conn., No. 13501; January 21, 1970)

The above proceeding involved a petition for naturalization filed by an alien who was admitted to this country as a lawful permanent resident in 1955, is married to a U.S. citizen and has three native-born children. The Naturalization Examiner opposed the petition on the ground that the petitioner failed to establish that she is attached to the principles of the Constitution of the United States and well-disposed to the good order and happiness of the United States, as required by Section 316(a) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. 1427(a).

The petitioner testified that she believes in the U.S. Constitution and in the form of government of the United States; that she would support and defend the Constitution by upholding and abiding by all the laws of the United States; that she has never been arrested or been a member of a subversive

organization; that she loves this country; and that she would take the oath of allegiance (except the part referring to bearing arms and performing non-combatant service in the Armed Forces) without mental reservation or inconsistent purpose. However, because of her religious beliefs and training as a Jehovah's Witness, she stated that she would not vote, engage in politics, or serve on a jury.

The Naturalization Examiner contended that as a matter of law a person who refuses to participate in the political affairs of the nation displays "an attitude inconsistent with a claim of attachment to the principles of the Constitution and active support of the Constitution /which/ is not made more palatable because of being based on religious beliefs". The court disagreed.

The court pointed out that a sincere and religiously motivated pacifist belief cannot bar naturalization. Girouard v. United States, 328 U.S. 61 (1946). The court also noted that involvement in politics and jury service are not the only ways to demonstrate an attachment to the principles of the Constitution, observing that very few loyal, native-born citizens run for elective office, many do not vote, and a Jehovah's Witness may be excused from jury duty on religious grounds. United States v. Hillyard, 52 F.Supp. 612 (E.D. Wash., 1943). The court found the petitioner qualified for citizenship, noting that she "loves this country and its institutions, participates in civic and educational affairs, obeys and supports the laws, cherishes our democratic values, practices democratic human relationships in the family and in the community, has her family and social roots deeply embedded in this society, and is a devout person". The court specifically disagreed with a contrary holding in In re Petition for Naturalization of Matz, 296 F.Supp. 927 (E.D. Calif. 1969).

The petition was granted.

Staff: William M. Dalton (Naturalization Examiner, Hartford, Conn.)

\*

\*

\*